United Nations AJc.asasr 10

N
\\/‘ )y Fifty-fourth session 16 December 1999
S 27 28 English

7 Official Records Original: Russian

Special Political and Decolonization Committee (Fourth Committee)

Summary record of the 10th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Monday, 18 October 1999, at 10 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. Zackheos . . ... .. e (Cyprus)

Contents

Tribute to the memory of Julius Nyerere and of United Nations staff members killed
in Burundi and Kosovo

Agenda item 90: Comprehensive review of the whole question of peacekeeping
operationsin all their aspects

Thisrecord is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concerned within one week of the date of publication to the Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

99-81662 (E)



A/C.4/54/SR.10

The meeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m.

Tribute to the memory of Julius Nyerere and of
United Nations staff members killed in Burundi
and Kosovo

1. Attheinvitationofthe Chairman, the membersofthe
Committee observed a minute of silence in tribute to the
memory of the first President of the United Republic of
Tanzania, Mr. Julius Nyerere, and to the United Nations
staff members killed in Burundi and Kosovo.

Agenda item 90: Comprehensive review of the whole
guestion of peacekeeping operations in all their
aspects (A/54/63-S/1999/171, A/54/87, A/C.4/54/L.2*)

2. Mr. Zaki (Egypt), speaking as Rapporteur of the
Special Committee on Peacekeeping Operations,
introduced thereport of the Special Committee (A/54/87)
and saidthat the Special Committeeconsideredit essential
for the United Nations to be in a position to maintain
international peace and security effectively, in particular
by effective planning and management of peacekeeping
operationsand by responding quickly and effectively toany
Security Council mandate. Since the end of the cold war,
the number of complex peacekeeping operations had
increased. In that regard, the Special Committee had
stressed the importance of an effective, efficiently
structured and adequately staffed Department of
Peacekeeping Operations. It had also stressed the
importance of consistently applying the principles and
standards it had established for the deployment and
conduct of peacekeeping operations.

3.  On the issue of consultations between troop-
contributing countries, the Security Council and the
Secretariat, the Special Committee again recommended
that steps should be taken to ensure rigorous, timely and
systematic implementation of the current arrangements,
which did not preclude the possibility of consultationsin
other forms.

4. Inthe personnel area, the Special Committee had
reaffirmed that all provisions of Articles 100 and 101 of
the Charter of the United Nationsmust befully and strictly
observedinthemanagement and conduct of peacekeeping
operations. It had stressed the importance of carefully
sel ecting and preparing senior military commanders, police
commissioners and key staff personnel before their
deployment to a peacekeeping operation.

5.  Inthesectionof thereport onorganization, planning
and coordination, the Special Committee noted the

importance of early planning and regul ar coordinationfor
peacekeeping operations. It alsoreiterated theimportance
of exercising transparency in sel ecting troop contributors,
in particular in the use of the United Nations standby
arrangements system. The Special Committee had again
stressedtheimportanceof timely, efficient, transparent and
cost-effectiveprocurement of goodsand servicesinsupport
of peacekeeping operations and welcomed the progress
achieved in developing a flexible and comprehensive
logistic strategy for peacekeeping operations.

6. In the section on safety and security, the Special
Committee expressed its grave concern at the growing
number of attacks and acts of violence against United
Nations and associated personnel. In that connection, it
had emphasized therol e of effective publicinformationin
enhancing personnel saf ety and theneed for peacekeeping
forcestobeproperly configured and discrepanciesbetween
mandates and resources to be avoided.

7.  Inrecognition of the growing role of civilian police
in peacekeeping operations, the Special Committee
supportedthe Secretariat’ seffortstofollow uptheCivilian
Police Seminarsandto coordinatefurther initiativesinthat
area. It alsoreaffirmed theneed to strengthenthe Civilian
Police Unit within the Department of Peacekeeping
Operations.

8. The Special Committee had noted that the United
Nationsrapid deployment capability wasacomprehensive
concept that included many elements and called upon all
Member States that had subscribed to the standby
arrangements system toinitiate, in collaboration with the
Secretariat, development of applicable contingent-owned
equi pment memoranda of understanding.

9. TheSpecial Committeehadstressedthat all Member
Statesmust pay their assessed contributionsinfull, ontime
and without conditions. Also, it had expressed deep
concern at the delay in reimbursements to troop
contributors, and encouraged the Secretariat to processthe
backlog of claims expeditiously.

10. Onesection of thereport wasdevoted to cooperation
withregional arrangements. Bearing in mind the primacy
of the United Nationsin the maintenance of international
peace and security, the Special Committee reaffirmed the
important contribution that regional arrangements and
agencies could make to peacekeeping in accordance with
Chapter VII of the Charter. In that regard, the Special
Committee had stressed that international efforts to
enhance the collective capacity of African countries to
participate in peacekeeping operations should focus first



A/C.4/54/SR.10

andforemost on enhancingtheinstitutional capacity of the
Organization of African Unity (OAU).

11. The Special Committee had cometo the conclusion
that itsrelationship with the General Assembly needed to
be enhanced so asto improvethe efficiency of thework of

the Special Committee and allow for closer consultations
with the Secretariat on peacekeeping issues. In that
connection, the Special Committee had requested that its
report should be circulated in official form no later than
four weeks after the completion of its substantive session.

The deliberations on the item on peacekeeping in the
Fourth Committee during thefollowing regul ar session of
the General Assembly would beginwith apresentation by
theUnder-Secretary-General for Peacekeepi ng Operations
on the implementation of the Special Committee’'s
recommendations, followed by an informal exchange of
views between the members of the Fourth Committee and
the Secretariat on the substance of the Under-Secretary-
General’s briefing. Member States would then have the
opportunity to participatein ageneral debateintheFourth
Committee on peacekeeping issues.

12. Mr. Miyet (Under-Secretary-General for
Peacekeeping Operations), reviewing the activities of the
Department of Peacekeeping Operations in 1999, noted
that peacekeeping operati onsremained an effectivemeans
of dealing with the crises occurring in various parts of the
world. Although there was no doubt that other
mechanisms, forumsand organi zationsmust be sought, the
recent events in Kosovo, East Timor, the Democratic
Republicof theCongoand SierraL eonehadreaffirmedthe
urgency and importance of the peacemaking activities of
the United Nations and its key role in the international
community’s efforts to advance the peace. Over the past
12 months, the scale of the Organization’s work in that
area had expanded significantly. Some of the most
important events had been the deployment of two
operationsthat wereunprecedentedinscale,inKosovoand
East Timor; the preparationsto begin amassive operation
in the Democratic Republic of the Congo; and the
substantial expansion of the operation in Sierra Leone.

13. It was now becoming increasingly clear that the
United Nations remained the key mechanism for
reconciling the most divergent views and managing
operations, whose mandates could be supported by all
interested parties. Regional organizationsandinternational
forces could in many cases play an important role in the
international community’ sefforts, andtheUnited Nations
welcomed their participation and cooperation in
peacemaking activities. At the same time, when major

crises arose, so did the need for broader political and
material support, which couldbeprovidedonly throughthe
United Nations.

14. The United Nations currently had 18 peacekeeping
operations under way, involving approximately 14,000
troops, military observers and civilian police, who were
taking on new, often unprecedentedtasks. Thedepl oyment
of 4,500 police in Kosovo, 6,000 peacekeepersin Sierra
Leone and 9,000 to 16,000 troops and civilian police in
East Timor, together with hundreds of civilian
administrators, meant that the total number of
peacekeepers would more than double within the next six
months. The United Nations peacekeepers serving with
dedicationand courage, oftenatrisk totheir lives, deserved
profound gratitude, asdid Member Stateswhich had made
their personnel available, even though the United Nations
had unfortunately not alwaysbeen ableto ensuretheir swift
reimbursement. Their readiness to make such sacrifices
testified to their commitment to the goals of the Charter
of the United Nations.

15. Briefly summarizing the achievementsover the past
year and highlighting some specific new demands on the
Department, he said that the United Nations had played a
key rolein supporting the successful consultation process
in East Timor and, through its continuous presencein the
area, had prevented the further development of thetragic
events. Currently, the United Nations was seeking to
address the immediate needs of the population of East
Timor, and to ensure a smooth transition to a United
Nations peacekeeping presence. Preparations were being
made for the deployment of the United Nations
Transitional Administration in East Timor (UNTAET),
which, like the administration in Kosovo, would have
wide-ranging responsibilities.

16. There was a large United Nations presence in
Kosovo, where the European Union and the Organization
for Security and Cooperation in Europe were cooperating
inreconstruction, rehabilitation and institution-building,
both those organizations operating under the authority of
the Special Representative. At the same time, there
continued to be close cooperation with the international
military forces responsible for security in Kosovo.

17. In Sierra Leone the international community was
workingto expanditssupport for the peace processin that
country and it was envisaged that the new United Nations
Mission in Sierra Leone (UNAMSIL) would include
political and civil components that would assist in the
implementation of the Lomé Peace Agreement; elements
that would promote human rights and the protection of



A/C.4/54/SR.10

children; and a 6,000-strong military component that
wouldassist theGovernmentincarryingoutitsprogramme
of disarmament and demobilization and create the
necessary conditions of confidence and stability. There
would also be civilian police to advise upon and monitor
the reform and restructuring of the Sierra Leone police
force. TheUnited Nationswouldreceivecrucial assistance
inits efforts from the Ceasefire Monitoring Group of the
Economic Community of West African States(ECOMOG),
which would provide a large contingent of troops and
would continue to play an essential role in providing
protection and security.

18. Atthesametime, two further operationswerebeing
plannedinAfrica. Aninitial deployment of liaison officers
had already been undertaken in the Democratic Republic
of the Congo and in the capitals of countries that had
signed the Lusaka Agreement and ways in which the
United Nations presence could be expanded to support
efforts to implement the peace agreements were under
review. The Organization was also ready, if necessary, to
participate in efforts to promote peace along the border
between Ethiopiaand Eritrea.

19. Two United Nations operations were nearing the
successful conclusion of their tasks. The United Nations
CivilianPoliceMissioninHaiti (MIPONUH), buildingon
thelegacy of earlier operations, waspromotingthecreation
of a professional police force. The United Nations
peacekeeping presence had enabl ed theHaitian peopleand
Government to establish foundations for progress; the
realization of those plans would depend on the political
will of the country’ sleaders. The United NationsMission
intheCentral African Republic (MINURCA) had assisted
withtheorganizationof presidential el ectionstheprevious
month, having previously supported legislative elections
in 1998. The operation, carried out in close cooperation
with international financial institutions, had helped to
promotepolitical andfinancial stability withinthecountry,
to strengthen local and regional security and to provide
space for reconciliation and economic recovery.

20. It should be noted that, in the case of a number of
recently established or expanded missions, the
Organization had had very limited timeto prepare. Inthe
Central African Republic, in East Timor, in Kosovo and
elsewhere the United Nations had been asked to address
increasingly complex needsin planning, deployment and
support within constantly shorter periods of time. In
Kosovo, 2,000 civilian police and an administrative
component had been successfully deployedinrecordtime.
Eventshadfollowed asimilar coursein East Timor, where
only the dynamism and dedication of United Nations staff

had made it possible to set up a wide-ranging operation
with practically no preparation.

21. As its workload had surged dramatically, the
Department had experienced difficulties, particularly in
dealing with longer-term requirements. In its report, the
Special Committee had urged the Secretariat to continue
itseffortstodevel optheOrganization’ sability tomakeuse
of civilian police in peacekeeping operations. In that
context, at the end of July 1999 the Department had
convenedafollow-upworkshoponcivilianpoliceat United
Nations Headquarters, in which all Member States had
been invited to participate. The report on the seminar,
which had been circulated to all Member States, had
emphasizedtheneedto ensurethat officersdeployedinthe
field possessed the necessary professional training, to
increase logistical support, and to ensure closer
cooperation between the Secretariat and Member States.
It had been suggested that the Secretariat should work to
develop the representation of police within standby
arrangements. In that context he noted with satisfaction
that over the past 12 months the civilian police
participationinstandby arrangementshadrisenfrom 1,300
to approximately 2,200 and that further increases were
expected by the end of the year. Unfortunately, that
progress had been dwarfed by the massive increase in
requirements associated with the new operations; total
police deployment was expected to reach 9,500 by the end
of the year. It had also been urged that the Organization
should be more specific about its recruiting needs for
participation in missions; the more detailed recruitment
system being devel oped for the operations in Bosnia and
Herzegovinaand in Kosovo might serve asaprototypein
that regard. It had been further suggested that the
Department shoul d coordinatetheorgani zation of strategy
discussions and training seminars.

22. Withregardtomaterial needs, the Secretary-General
had described the problemin detail in hisstatement to the
FifthCommitteein October 1999, inwhichhehad outlined
efforts to streamline procedures and cited the need for
adequate resources. The rapid depletion of standby
equipment at theUnited NationsL ogisticsBaseinBrindisi
during the recent deployment of peacekeeping operations
had highlighted the pertinence of that issue. In terms of
personnel, it should be noted that the new operations
deployed by the United Nations had drawn on specialists
in many fields that had not traditionally formed part of
peacekeeping operations, including judgesand prosecutors,
civil engineersandcivilianadministrators. Therewasal so
apressing needfor specialistsin publicinformation, since
peacekeeping operations had to reach out to the general



A/C.4/54/SR.10

public to explain their complex roles. It might be hel pful
to expand the standby arrangements system by including
military expertsin such areas as law, public information
or engineering. TheDepartment had al so beguntoregister
civilian personnel; it might be useful to pursuethefurther
development of rosters of civilian administrators, either
within the United Nations database or within
corresponding national systems.

23. TheDepartmentwelcomedtheentryintoforceof the
Conventiononthe Safety of United Nationsand Associated
Personnel and was grateful for the Special Committee’s
effortstofocusattention onthat issue, inter alia by urging
Member States which had not yet done so to consider
becoming parties to the Convention (A/54/87, para. 88).
At the same time, like the Special Committee, the
Department believed that more needed to be done,
especially in the light of the series of attacks on United
Nations peacekeeping personnel, most recently in Sierra
Leone, East Timor, Kosovo, Georgia and Burundi. The
Department would give particular consideration to that
issuein the context of its ongoing study of the nature and
frequency of attackson peacekeepersandrelated personnel.
He hoped that the study would facilitate further dialogue
with and among M ember Stateson measuresthat could be
taken.

24. Initsreport, the Special Committeefocused not only
onpractical needs, but alsoonthedoctrinal underpinnings
of United Nations peacekeeping. Accordingly, it had
requested the Secretariat to finalize, as soon as possible,
guidelines on the observance by peacekeepers of
international humanitarianlaw. Asthe Fourth Committee
was aware, those guidelines had been issued on 6 August
1999inthe Secretary-General’ sbulletin ST/SGB/1999/13.
Theirissuancehadfollowedlengthy discussionswithinthe
Secretariat, between the Secretariat and the International
Committee of the Red Cross and between the Secretariat
and Member States. The draft text that had resulted from
that process had been circulated to Member States at the
end of June. Subsequently, the Officeof Legal Affairsand
the Department of Peacekeeping Operationshad convened
ameeting for afinal exchange of views on the text. After
the meeting, several Member States had provided
comments which, in many cases, had proved useful for
finalizing the text. Although the document was not an
exhaustive list of the principles of international
humanitarian law and would not replace the regulations
applicable to military contingents under their national
laws, it could be of real assistance in clarifying the
application of international humanitarian law to United
Nations forces and operations.

25. The Special Committee had also drawn attention to
the need to cooperate with regional partners and, in that
context, to the importance of efforts to enhance the
peacekeeping capacity of the African countries. In that
connection, the Department welcomed the organization,
by the Security Council, of a ministerial meeting on 29
September to consider cooperation with Africa. Together
with the Organization of African Unity (OAU), the
Department had organized, early intheyear, athird high-
level meeting ontheenhancement of African peacekeeping
capacity. Inline with the decisions taken at that meeting,
the Secretariat was currently facilitating consultations
among Member States on the establishment of aworking
group to serve asaforum for regular exchanges of views,
coordination of activitiesand increased cooperation. The
Secretariat was also continuing its direct involvement in
training and capacity-buildingactivitiesfor African States
and itssupport for bilateral cooperation with them. It was
important to notethat 21 African countrieswere currently
participating in United Nations operations, not only in
Africa, but also in Europe, Asia and the Americas.
Ultimately, by strengtheningthecapacity of African States
toparticipatein peacekeeping operations, theinternational
community could enhance the Organization’s ability to
promote world peace.

26. The Special Committee’s report also dealt with a
number of management-related questions on which the
Secretariat had been active over the past year. Withregard
togender balance, the Department had analysedthereplies
received from troop-contributing countries to a
guestionnaire on the role and status of women in their
military services and civilian police forces, which had
provided a clearer picture of the capacity of troop
contributorsto providefemal epersonnel. The Department
intended to continue to take steps to improve gender
balancein peacekeeping operationswhile simultaneously
promoting geographical balance. Once again, he urged
Member Statesto nominatewomen for |eadership postsin
peacekeeping missions. At the sametime, the Department
wouldseek toimprovegender balanceamongitsunit chiefs
at Headquarters; in that connection, he was pleased to
announce the appointment of an exceptionally well-
gualifiedfemal ecandidateasthehead of theDepartment’ s
Training Unit. Inaddition, the Department had undertaken
a three-month programme of gender mainstreaming
training for all staff of the Department working at
Headquarters.

27. Thenew structureof theDepartment hadlargely been
put in place. Although the initial results of the
restructuring had been favourable, the staffing situation



A/C.4/54/SR.10

had worsened considerably over the past year. As the
Fourth Committee was aware, the phasing out of gratis
personnel had been completed by the scheduled deadline
of February 1999, after which the total number of postsin
the Department had been reduced. Unfortunately, that
decision had coincided with a dramatic rise in
peacekeeping activity, with the result that what had been
intended as alean and efficient staffing arrangement had
becomeuntenableinpractice. The Advisory Committeeon
Administrative and Budgetary Questions (ACABQ) had
noted that the Secretariat could request additional
resources if the need arose and, accordingly, the
Department was currently preparing a request for
supplementary posts. However, the process of requesting
and obtaining postsand recruiting suitablecandidateswas
aprotracted one, and the Secretariat coul d not predict what
its peacekeeping needswould beat agiven moment. It was
thereforeimperativethat capacity andflexibility shouldbe
built into the manner in which the Department operated.

28. Partnership between the Secretariat and Member
States was crucial to ensuring that the mandates of
peacekeeping operationswerefeasible, consistentandfully
supported with material resources. The Secretariat was
responsiblefor providing timely and reliableinformation
and elaborating optionsfor action, with full regard for the
principle that activities to preserve peace and security in
all parts of the world were of equal concern to the
international community. Atthesametime, Member States
must be prepared to act, to ensurethat the preparation and
conduct of peacekeeping operations were consistent and
toprovidematerial and political support for theoperations
they established. All Member States were equally
responsible for fulfilling the mandate of any United
Nations peacekeeping operation. If Member States asked
the United Nationsto do theimpossible, failed to provide
the necessary tools or abandoned the Organization in its
hour of need, an instrument of great potential would be
lost. Partnership between the Secretariat and Member
States was not confined to the conduct of individual
operations, but took the form of ongoing collaborationin
the management of peacekeeping activities, in which
Member States and the Secretariat had complementary
rolesto play.

29. The Secretariat was responsible for providing
executive direction and management of operationsin the
field. Transparency and consultationwereessential, but the
need to uphold those principlescould not beused to justify
inaction. Asthe Secretary-General had notedinhisaddress
to the Fifth Committee, the Secretariat respected the
General Assembly’s right to legislate, but, in turn, the

effectiveness of the Secretariat’s work depended on the
extent to which Member States respected its prerogatives
in the areaof management. United Nations peacekeeping
operationswould continueto beauniqueandirreplaceable
instrument that should be strengthened and preserved for
future generations.

30. Mr. Haekkerup (Denmark) saidthat hisdelegation
associated itself with the statement made on behalf of the
European Union. If theUnited Nationswasto carry out its
peacekeeping activities effectively, it must be provided
with adequate resources. The provision of human and
financial resourceswastheAchillesheel of peacekeeping.
The current year had been a particularly turbulent onein
that regard for the Department of Peacekeeping
Operations, which had lost valuable expertise and
continuity in key positions as aresult of a 20 per cent cut
in manpower resources. His delegation called upon
Member Statesto translate the political support they had
expressed in the Fourth Committee into corresponding
financial decisionsintheFifth Committee. Resourceswere
understood to include morethan just financial means; the
United Nationsal soneededwell-trained and well-equi pped
peacekeepers. Currently, there were only three peoplein
the Training Unit. Much more emphasis should be placed
on that issue. It was important that as many countries as
possible should participate in peacekeeping operations,
since the settlement of crises was a responsibility of the
entire international community.

31. The standby system could be more focused and
efficient. On paper the United Nations had more than
140,000troopsat itsdisposal but experiencefrom past and
recent operations showed that that was not areality. Asa
first step towards making the standby system more
operational, the United Nations could start amore active
dialogue concerning individual troop contributions. The
organization could also look more systematically at
improving the police component of the system.

32. His country welcomed the efforts to establish the
rapidly deployable mission headquarters (RDMHQ) but,
with the increasing number of missions, it was possible
that an additional RDMHQ would be needed in order
rapidly to deploy to a new second mission.

33. Lookingback at recent devel opments, hisdelegation
wished to compliment the Department of Peacekeeping
Operations on the progress achieved in the area of public
information in the context of peacekeeping missions. The
effective employment of public information must be an
integral part of any peacekeeping operationsinceit played
akey rolein the battle for the hearts and minds of people



A/C.4/54/SR.10

in the mission area and was of great importance for the
safety and security of the personnel, as well as being an
important tool in the post-conflict peace-building phase.

34. Hiscountry notedtheprogressinthefieldof logistics
but urged that resources be found for the additional
necessary start-up kits. It was also gratifying to note that
important lessons that had been learned from past
operations were incorporated into new ones; that should
be part of the routine procedures when considering new
missions.

35. Earlywarningwasanecessary conditionfor effective
preventive action. If preventive action were taken more
seriously that would hel ptoreducethe number of warsand
theconsequential human suffering. Inthat connection, the
Secretary-General was to be commended on his use of
special envoysand on hisquiet diplomacy. Early warning
needed to be accompanied by efficient contingency
planning; the United Nations could not wait for decisions
by the Security Council before making a start on
operational andlogisticsplanning for apotential operation.

36. Peacekeeping was a global responsibility which
should not be farmed out to regional organizations.
However, assistance to and cooperation with regional
organizationscouldbevery effectiveinconflict prevention
and assist in building peacekeeping capacities for use
jointly with the United Nations.

37. His country was supporting the efforts of the
countries of the Southern African Development
Community (SADC) to develop their own peacekeeping
capacity, as well as a capacity for conflict prevention. It
was assisting in building up aregional training centrein
Harare and had shared experience in preparing for
international missions with ministers from the member
countriesof SADC. Hiscountry fully supported theefforts
of the Secretary-General to coordinate training for
peacekeeping, capacity-building and the establishment of
an early-warning system. That would enable the African
countriesto create their own conflict resolution capacity.

38. Over the years, the United Nations had achieved
impressive results but the strengthening of peace still
required further hard work; the more proactive was the
approach of the international community, the smaller
would be the resources needed. Peacekeeping was not the
solution, but a means to an end.

39. His country had consistently supported the United
Nations with manpower, financing, political support and
new thinking, and intended to continue to do so.

40. Ms. Rasi (Finland), speaking on behalf of the
European Union, the associated countries Bulgaria,
Cyprus, the Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia,
Lithuania, Malta, Poland, Romania, Slovakiaand Slovenia,
and, in addition, Iceland, expressed appreciation to the
Special Committee on Peacekeeping Operations for the
work it had done, drawing particular attention to the
agreement on the reform of the Special Committee’s
working methods which would add new dynamism to its
work in 2000.

41. Following a period of reduced activity, United
Nations peacekeeping activities were once again on the
increase. The Organization had been entrusted with new
and extremely challengingtasksinK osovoand East Timor
and waslikely to strengthen its peacekeeping presencein
Africa. The European Union reiterated its strong
commitment to the role of the United Nations in the
mai ntenance of international peace and security and had
demonstrated that commitment in practical terms: in
August 1999, one third of the civilian police and over a
guarter of the troops serving in peacekeeping missions
were citizens of the European Union and its financial
contributionsrepresented almost 40 per cent of the United
Nations peacekeeping budget.

42. The events of the past few months had obliged the
membership of the Organization and the Secretariat to
consider how the capacity of the Organization could be
strengthened and how to provide adequate collective
resources to meet present and future challenges. The
EuropeanUnionhadrepeatedly supported themai ntenance
of the capacity of the Department of Peacekeeping
Operations to deploy and manage such operations,
irrespectiveof their number and size. Unfortunately, there
had been a 20 per cent decrease in the personnel of the
Department during the previous year. In the view of the
European Union, the Department would be unable, at
present staffing levels, to meet the new challenges
presented to it by the Organization.

43. Inthe past few years, peacekeeping operations had
become increasingly multidimensional. In order to plan,
deploy and manage the increasing number of
multidimensional missions, the Department needed to be
adequately structured and staffed. At the same time, it
should coordinate and cooperate with United Nations
agencies, other international organizations and Member
States, thereby making possible an improvement in the
coordination of human rights tasks, integrating a gender
perspective into peacekeeping operations as well as
drawing attention to the rights of children in armed
conflicts.



A/C.4/54/SR.10

44. TheEuropean Union believed that the planning and
deployment of new large-scale, multidimensional
operations required, above all, greater professional
expertiseamong military personnel andthecivilianpolice
forces.

45. Thestreamlining of the structure of the Department
would have only a limited impact in terms of the
rationalization of resources, and in that connection the
European Union looked forward to a request from the
Secretariat concerning adequate staffing levels to be
presented for consideration by the relevant organs.
Addressing that problem would enhance the safety and
security of peacekeeping personnel, the quality and
effectiveness of peacekeeping operations, and ultimately
the willingness of Member States to contribute to such
activities.

46. Another means of strengthening the peacekeeping
capacity of the United Nations would be to enhance its
rapid deployment capacity, acentral element of whichwere
thestandby arrangements. TheEuropean Unionreaffirmed
its strong support for those arrangements and looked for
their furtherimprovement. Recal ling that the Organi zation
was not in aposition to deploy Headquarters personnel to
the theatre of operations, she considered that complete
staffing of the rapidly deployable mission headquarters
(RDMHQ) without delay was a priority and was vital for
the credibility of the concept of United Nations
peacekeeping.

47. The demand for civilian police was increasing
significantly and it would become ever more difficult to
providethenumbersrequired while preservingthequality
and respecting the principle of broad geographical
distribution. The European Union considered it essential
to think creatively in order to tackle that problem and
called on all Member States and the Secretariat to share
ideas in that connection, always keeping in mind the
requirements for high standards in the training and
performanceof policeofficerstogether withtheimportance
of studying the question of how to develop rapid civilian
police deployment capacities.

48. Turning to the financial situation, he said that the
new peacekeepi ng mandatesmadeit even moreimperative
that Member States should fulfil all their financial
obligations to the Organization. Peacekeeping was an
activity where shared commitments had to be translated
into willingness to provide sufficient resources.

49. With regard to the guidelines for peacekeepers on
humanitarian law, the European Union regretted the way
inwhich the Secretariat had carried out the consultations

prior totheir publication. Neverthel essthe European Union
was considering those guidelines and believed it was
important that they should accurately reflect theprovisions
of international humanitarian law.

50. Finally, he paid tribute to those who had lost their
lives while serving in United Nations peacekeeping
activities, most recently in Kosovo and Burundi. The
European Union was outraged at the hostage-taking of
United Nationsand other international personnel, andwas
adamant that the safety and security of peacekeeping
personnel had to be one of thetop prioritiesfor the United
Nations and its Member States.

51. Prince Zeid Ra’ad Zeid Al-Hussein (Jordan),
speaking on behalf of the Non-Aligned Movement, said
that the M ovement had alwaysbelieved that peacekeeping
operations should conform strictly to the guiding
principles, as contained in paragraphs 48 to 53 of the
report of the Special Committee (A/54/87), including the
consent of the parties, the non-use of force except in self-
defence, and impartiality. Moreover, the success of any
mi ssion depended on clearly defined mandatesand secure
financing.

52. Whilepeacekeepingwasanimportantinstrument for
the maintenance of international peace and security, it
could not be a substitute for a permanent solution, or for
addressing the underlying causes of a conflict.
Peacekeeping operations had their greatest value as a
temporary measure contributing to a ceasefire or a
cessation of hostilities, and provided an atmosphere
conducivetothepursuit, through other peaceful means, of
an end to the conflict.

53. TheNon-Aligned Movement believed that theissue
of “humanitarianintervention” should beaddressedinthe
appropriateforumsof the General Assembly, but notinthe
Fourth Committee. In its recent communiqué, it had
rejected the so-called right of humanitarian intervention
as having no legal basis in the Charter or in the general
principles of international law. Furthermore, it was
important that the United Nations should maintain aclear
distinction between humanitarian operationsandall other
activities of the United Nations system, including
peacekeeping.

54. The cooperative spirit which had characterized the
work of the Special Committee at its 1999 spring session
had contributed to the Committee’s adoption of a new
working procedure, which would allow the General
Assembly to consider the peacekeeping issue more
effectively, and to enhance the role of the Special



A/C.4/54/SR.10

Committeein maintai ning therelationship betweenit and
the Fourth Committee as between asubsidiary body and a
Main Committee of the General Assembly.

55. Since the time of the latest meeting of the Special
Committee, anumber of new operationshad been, or were
in the process of being, established. It wasimportant that
the Security Council should approach all conflicts,
irrespective of their geographical location, with an equal
and uniform level of intensity and commitment. In
connectionwiththeincreased burden onthe Secretariat as
aresult of thenew mandatesfromthe Security Council, the
Non-Aligned Movement would like to know how the
Secretariat was handling the current surge in new
operations, particularly after the phase-out of gratis
personnel, and whether it wasseeking additional resources.
Inthat context, theNon-Aligned M ovement attached great
importancetofilling all postsinamanner consistent with
therequirementsof Articles 100 and 101 of the Charter of
theUnited Nationsand onthewidest possi blegeographical
basis. That applied not only to the Department of
Peacekeeping Operations in New York, but also to the
field.

56. Therehad been other devel opmentswhich had been
a cause of concern and were an argument in favour of
establishing a closer relationship between the Secretariat
and membersof theGeneral Assembly, whichprovidedthe
bulk of personnel serving on missions. Referring to one
problemarea, hesaidthat theUnder-Secretary-General for
Peacekeeping Operations had sent Member Statesaletter
dated 28 June in which he had cited the Special
Committee’s 1999 report and noted how the Committee
had urged the Secretariat to finalize the guidelines for
United Nations peacekeepers regarding international
humanitarian law. He had attached to that letter the
Secretary-General’ s official bulletin on the issue, which
had not yet been published.

57. Inresponse, the Working Group of theNon-Aligned
Movement had sent two | ettersto the Secretariat, in one of
which, dated 8 July, it had expressed appreciation to the
Under-Secretary-General for having distributed the
provisional document, but had requested him to give
Member States more time to study it, as the two weeks
assigned for that purpose were clearly insufficient,
especially since the Secretariat had been working on the
document for almost two and a half years, during which
timeit had had no consultationwiththetroop-contributing
countries. In that letter, the Non-Aligned Movement had
also notedthat theUnder-Secretary-General had not taken
into account paragraph 82 of the Special Committee’s

report, in which the Secretariat was urged to finalize the
guidelines*inconsultationswiththe Special Committee”.

58. TheNon-Aligned Movement had therefore thought
it appropriateto ask the Special Committeeto convene an
informal session of the Working Group so that a large
number of Member States could review the proposed
bulletin, and that had been done. Inits second | etter of 22
July, the Secretariat had been informed of the decision to
convene such ameeting. On 26 July, when the Chairman
of the Working Group had been temporarily absent from
New York, the Secretariat had hastily arranged aseparate
meeting for Member States, at which, despite objections
by a number of members of the Non-Aligned Movement
and other countries, a decision had been taken to release
the guidelinesin their original form.

59. Such behaviour on the part of the Secretariat was
simply unacceptable, and was hardly in keeping with the
spirit of the consultation process envisaged in the report
of the Special Committee. TheNon-Aligned Movement did
not consider the matter closed and hoped that the
guidelines would be properly examined in consultation
with Member States. A similar approach should be taken
to the handling of the sample rules of engagement, in
accordance with paragraph 70 of the report of the Special
Committee.

60. Another issue of concern was the Secretariat’s
procedure for the selection of police personnel for the
Kosovo mission. At briefings for the troop-contributing
countries, the Secretariat had informed them that, owing
to lack of time, it had been unable to send Selection
Assistance Teams to those countries and that greater
flexibility would befactoredinto the admission of thefirst
batch of police officers.

61. Unfortunately, everything had happeneddifferently.
The police monitors had been given an English-language
proficiency test which had been more stringent than that
for other missions, and many of themhad beenjudged unfit
for service. Some police officers who had passed the first
test successfully had been given asecond test, which they
had then failed. All that wasvery disturbing for anumber
of members of the Non-Aligned Movement. The United
Nationsshouldat | east cover therepatriation costsof those
police officers.

62. Onamoregeneral level, the Working Group of the
Non-Aligned Movement acknowledged that the primary
responsibility for the nomination of the police officerslay
withthe Member Statesthemselves. It al so recognized the
need for civilian police officersto receive further testing
in the field, on their driving ability, but the policy to be



A/C.4/54/SR.10

followed in that regard should be that outlined by the
Secretariat in its note of 8 July 1998.

63. TheMovement of Non-Aligned countriesremained
deeply concerned about the delays in reimbursement of
troop costsand conti ngent-owned equi pment | eases. Those
delaysadversely affected thecapacity, and, potentially, the
will of troop-contributing countries to participate in
peacekeeping. It also wished to highlight paragraph 107
of thereport of the Special Committee and to reaffirm the
obligation of Member States to bear the expenses of the
Organization, inaccordancewith Article17 of theCharter,
bearinginmindthespecial responsibility of the permanent
members of the Security Council.

64. With respect to procurement, the Non-Aligned
Movement recalled General Assembly resolution 51/231
of 13June1997, which mentionedtheneedtogivepriority
to developing countries. It also considered that the
Organization should give preferential treatment to offers
from troop-contributing countries. In order to induce
countries to pay their contributions, the Organization
should consider the option of not awarding contracts to
Member States that had the capacity to pay, but did not
fulfil their financial obligations to the United Nations.

65. The planning and deployment of peacekeeping
operations should take place within the framework of the
standby arrangementssystem, whichwasopentoall States.
Withregardto cooperation betweentheUnited Nationsand
regional arrangements, the Non-Aligned Movement
stressed the importance of paragraphs 115 to 123 of the
report and noted that such cooperation must abide by the
letter and spirit of Chapter V111 of the Charter and must
take into account the existing mechanismsin each of the
regional agencies.

66. In conclusion, the Non-Aligned Movement paid
tribute to the United Nations peacekeepers who had died
inthelineof duty. Inthat connection, it wished to express
concern over theincreaseinthe number of attacksagainst
members of peacekeeping missions, and, in keeping with
paragraph 89 of the report, to recommend that the
Secretariat should seek theviewsof Member Statesonthat
subject in an open-ended working group or seminar on
safety and security of United Nations personnel in
peacekeeping operations.

67. Mr. Kolby (Norway) said that, while in the past
“traditional” conflicts had been settled by the signing of
apeace agreement, there wasreally only one approach to
today’ s conflicts, given their complexities, and that was
peace-building, which meant supporting the transition
from war to peace. Because of the diversity of the

10

organizations involved in peace-building, there must be
clear mechanisms for coordinating the actions of all the
participants, and all the organizationsinvolved must have
acommon goal.

68. The United Nations was best able to set up
multifunctional peacekeeping operationsby making useof
acombination of different strategic instruments. In order
for it to do so, however, the Organization’s personnel at
all levels, particularly leadersin the field, must have the
appropriatetraining. Priority must thereforebegiventothe
work of the Lessons Learned Unit and the Training Unit.

69. Theexpertiseand qualificationsof personnel played
acrucial role in promoting cooperation among different
organizations, and hisdel egation therefore attached great
importancetotheactivitiesof theUnited NationsTraining
Assistance Teams. It actively supported such training and
suppliedinstructorsand financial resources. Professional
|eadershipwasanother important ingredient for thesuccess
of multifunctional peacekeeping operations.

70. Since each operation had its own specific
characteristics, there was a need to take into account the
distribution of roles among the various regional
participants, aswell as other regional dimensions. When
largemilitary forceswerecalledfor, the Organi zation must
seek assistance from regional organizations, which could
more readily mobilize the forces of their members. It was
therefore necessary to strengthen the capacity of such
organizationsto participate in peacekeeping operations.

71. Inthat connection, hisdel egation consideredthat the
United Nations, in close cooperation with regional
organizations, must establish common principles for
trai ning personnel and military units. It wasal soimportant
toestablishcommonstructuresfor interaction betweenthe
Organizationandtherespectiveregional organizationsand
toimprovemultifunctional planningand coordination. The
Rapidly Deployable Mission Headquartershad avital role
to play in that work. In order to realize those important
aims, countries with greater financial resources and
extensiveexperienceof peacekeeping must providefunding
and personnel to establish a self-sustaining peacekeeping
capacity within all regional organizations.

72. Asthe experience of the past decade had shown, in
order to achieve a sustainable peace, the international
community must assist countriesinrebuildingaviablecivil
society. Disarmament, demobilization and reintegration
played an important rolein that regard.

73. The presence of large numbers of small arms and
light weaponswas amajor destabilizing factor during the



A/C.4/54/SR.10

post-conflict phase, threatening the security of
peacekeepers and humanitarian personnel. There was
therefore a need to include in the mandate of future
peacekeeping operations the demobilization of former
combatants and the collection of small arms.

74. Hisdelegationconsideredthat oneof themost crucial
issuesin almost all peace-building efforts wasthe reform
of the State security system, in particular such elementsas
the police, the judiciary and the criminal justice system.
They were among the key functions of any State and must
not be neglected in the national reconstruction process.

75. It wastherefore important that the United Nations
should stressto Member States the need to build capacity
in order to allow for the participation in peacekeeping
operations of specialists in the field of security sector
reform, for the shortage of such persons was sorely felt
throughout the world. The Organization might consider
developing acommon strategy for participationinreform
of that sector. It should also establish common standards
and organize common training for that type of personnel.

76. Peace-buildingincreasingly entailedthetrainingand
restructuring of local policeforces. That wasanimportant
element of overall security sector reform, requiring the
alteration of the institutional environment in which the
policeoperated. That processrequired many yearsof effort,
aswell astheprovisionby the Organization of officerswith
expertise in building institutions, conducting police
training and restructuring police forces. That issue wasa
priority for hiscountry. Currently, anumber of experienced
Norwegian police officerswereworking asinstructorson
courses for civilian police all over the world.

77. Inmanyinstances, thedestabilizing consequencesof
conflicts, namely organized crime, weaponssmugglingand
so on, spilled over national borders. Peace-building must
therefore be seen as an issue of regional dimensions.

78. Mr. Sutoyo (Indonesia), speaking on behalf of the
Association of South-East Asian Nations (ASEAN),
reaffirmedtheguiding principlesrel ating to peacekeeping
operations embodied in the Final Communiqué of the
Conferenceof Ministersof theNon-Aligned Movement and
in the report of the Special Committee to the fifty-fourth
session of theGeneral Assembly. Becauseof theincreasing
complexity of the peacekeeping operations conducted by
the United Nations, ASEAN was concerned about the
safety and security of United Nations staff and agreed on
the need to give the staff adequate protection. It was also
important to ensure maximum impartiality in the
operations and among the staff assigned to them. The
procedurefor the recruitment of United Nations staff was

amatter of serious concern. In the case of international
staff, measures were taken to ensure equitable
representation, but that was not true of local staff of the
United Nations in mission areas. That was incompatible
with the impartial nature of the United Nations and
ASEAN strongly urged the Secretariat to give serious
attention to that issue.

79. Regional organizations and the international
community asawholecould play arolein United Nations
peacekeeping operationsin accordancewith theletter and
spirit of the Charter and the mandate of the Security
Council. ASEAN would study ways and means of
improving cooperation with the United Nations in order
to promote peace and stability intheregion. ASEAN also
believedthat regional effortswerenosubstitutefor therole
of the United Nations in maintaining peace, since the
Organization bore the primary responsibility for the
maintenance of international peace and security. In
addition, regional peacekeeping efforts should be strictly
based ontheprinciplesof the Charter of theUnited Nations
and subject to the control of the Security Council.
Moreover, ASEAN espoused the principle of universal
participation in peacekeeping operations.

80. IftheSecretariat rejected arequest fromaparticular
Member Stateto participate in a peacekeeping operation,
it should explain the reason for its decision. In recent
months, the Secretariat had taken steps to improve the
arrangementsfor informing Member Statesabout thework
of missions in the regions. If there was no time for the
Secretariat to convene a meeting in order to convey
important or urgent information, it should communicate
directly with the Permanent Missions concerned.

81. ASEAN welcomed thefact that, for thefirsttimein
four years, the United Nations had decreased the amount
borrowed from the peacekeeping budget to finance items
under theregul ar budget. Theborrowing adversely affected
the Organization’'s ability to reimburse on time the
countries contributing troops and equipment to
peacekeeping operations, many of whichweredevel oping
countries. ASEAN strongly urged the Secretary-General
to give urgent attention to the problem of overdue
payments, particularly to developing countries. The
Organization currently owed ASEAN member Statesabout
US$ 30 million. The developing troop-contributing
countriesshould not suffer because otherswerenot meeting
their obligations.

82. Despite the progress made by the Procurement
Division, ASEAN strongly urged the Secretariat to
continue effortstoimproveand reformthe proceduresand

11



A/C.4/54/SR.10

rules for procurement and to expand the geographical
scopeof thelist of suppliers, aswell astotakeal | necessary
measures to increase the volume of purchases for
peacekeeping operationsfromdevel oping countriesandto
grant preferential treatment to vendors from those
countrieswho met theestablished requirements. Whilethe
financial andother obligationswithregardto peacekeeping
operations were borne by the majority of Member States,
purchases for those operations basically continued to be
made in asmall number of countries.

83. In conclusion, ASEAN expressed support for the
Special Committeeand profound gratitudeto peacekeepers
throughout the world.

84. Mr. Zaki(Egypt) recalledthat thefirst peacekeeping
operationintheestablished sensehad been approved by the
General Assembly and not by the Security Council and had
been deployed on the territory of Egypt at the beginning
of 1957. He had referred to that operation in order to
reaffirm the role entrusted by the Charter to the General
Assembly in the maintenance of international peace and
security.

85. In connection with the ongoing debate about the
United Nations approach to crises with a humanitarian
aspect, the delegation of Egypt firmly adhered to the
consistent position of the Non-Aligned Movement on the
need to differentiate between peacekeeping and
humanitarianaction. The General Assembly shouldassume
theprincipal roleinthediscussion of those questions, and
Egypt had a specific proposal to make in that regard.

86. Theeventsof 1999, after the end of the most recent
session of the Special Committee on Peacekeeping
Operations, raised a number of important issues: the
methods and structure of work of the Secretariat and their
appropriateness for the conditions created by the new
operations; the value of the Stand-By Arrangements
Systemfor the Organizationand whether thecontributions
fromMember Stateswerewithintherequirements; andthe
comprehensive review of the rules governing the role of
civilian police, which had become a crucial element in
most United Nations operations.

87. Thedelegation of Egypt viewed with deep concern
the delay in reimbursing Egypt for its participation in
United Nationsoperations. Such delaysadversely affected
the capacity of Egypt and of many other countries,
particularly developing countries, to sustain an effective
contribution to those operations.

88. Thecurrent year had witnessed an important event
relating to the issue by the Secretariat of guidelines on

12

international humanitarian law for the staff of
peacekeeping operations. Inadditiontowhat had been said
by the representative of Jordan in that regard, the
delegation of Egypt considered that the guidelines should
be subject to review and appraisal. That should be done
primarily throughthe Special Committeeon Peacekeeping
Operationsin coordination with the Sixth Committee.

89. Inconclusion, thedelegation of Egypt welcomedthe
Special Committee’s proposal that its method of work
should be examined in the Fourth Committee and in the
General Assembly. Egypt looked forward to enhanced
cooperation between the Special Committee and the
Secretariat, which would have apositive effect on theway
in which the United Nations addressed questions related
to the maintenance of international peace and security.

90. Mr.Barbers (Philippines) saidthat thepast year had
been particularly challenging for United Nations
peacekeeping operationsasregardsresourcelevel shothfor
the United Nationsand for contributing States. Therewas
asensethat many contributing States had started to suffer
from “donor fatigue” because of the growing number of
operations.

91. The United Nations had become expert in
peacekeeping operations but it would be most imprudent
to think that familiarity and practice would eliminate all
the problems. That was, of course, far from being the case.
Not only was the world still suffering from violence and
conflict, but there was no agreement on the concepts and
strategy underlying United Nations peacekeeping missions.
Thegrowing universal consciousnessof humanrightswas
placing a new strain on the traditional concepts of
sovereignty and non-interference in domestic affairs of
States. The Philippines valued State sovereignty and the
universal natureof humanrightsasimportant components
of its national values and interests.

92. TheUnited Nations should be ableto find abalance
between uphol ding thesovereignty of Statesand promoting
humanrights. If theinternational order wastobeunder the
rule of law, it was essential to uphold the decision of the
international community to givetheexclusiveright to use
force to the Security Council, except in situations where
the use of force was dictated by the need for self-defence.
To allow or tolerate unilateral intervention would set a
dangerous precedent in power politics for future
generations, whichwould lead to the demise of therule of
law. At thesametime, Governmentsshould not beall owed
to hide behind the veil of sovereignty while continuing to
suppress basic human rights.



A/C.4/54/SR.10

93. ThePhilippineswasparticipatingactively inseveral
peacekeeping missions and would continueto do so asfar
asitsresources would allow. It was particularly grateful
for the Secretariat’ seffortsto achieve agender balancein
the Department of Peacekeeping Operations and in the
field, and for the Department’ s efforts in that direction.

94. Whilethewholequestion of peacekeeping operations
could be broken downinto anumber of details, it might be
useful to consider where peacekeeping stood as an
important concernof theUnited Nations. Theinternational
community must find a balance between the principles of
State sovereignty and human rights, which had been
proclaimed in various forums, since they seemed to be on
acollision course.

95. Mr. Kazykhanov (Kazakhstan) saidthat Kazakhstan
firmly supported the peacekeeping activitiesof the United
Nations and its efforts to strengthen its peacekeeping
potential, and shared the view of those States which
believed that in the next century the world must become
multipolar, free from power centres and dividing lines,
from confrontation and clashes.

96. An analysis of the main causes of past conflicts
showed that the transformation of potential conflictsinto
uncontrollable violence could be prevented only by early
warning based on apreventive strategy under the auspices
of the United Nations and by the necessary political will.
That was apparent also from the recent crises in Kosovo
and East Timor. In that context, his delegation fully
endorsed the need to strengthen the Organization’s
potential to prevent armed conflicts by strengthening the
strategy of preventive diplomacy, preventive deployment
and preventive disarmament.

97. Oneofthemaintasksinthesphereof peace-building
was still the creation of a comprehensive mechanism to
prevent the actual outbreak of destructive conflicts and
their spread into the international arena. In that
connection, it was essential to continue to seek ways of
reacting effectively to the complex conflictsthat arosein
the modern world, which often required simultaneous
action to maintain peace and promote devel opment.

98. In recent years, poor countries had been far more
likely than rich countries to become embroiled in armed
conflicts. His delegation therefore fully shared the
Secretary-General’s conclusions that the international
community should actively encourage policies that
enhanced peopl e-centred security inconflict-proneregions,
since minimum standards of security were aprecondition
for development. Also important for the achievement of

those goals was the application by the Organization of a
new integrated concept of security at thelocal level.

99. His delegation commended the efforts of the
Secretariat and theDepartment of Peacekeeping Operations
to pay due attention to the proposals regarding
participation in peacekeeping operations under stand-by
arrangements, the potential of whichwasdemonstrated by
the fact that the system currently included more than 80
States.

100. Inthe context of the measures required to make the
training of peacekeepers more effective, the further
development of cooperation between the United Nations
and Member States in the conduct of multidimensional
exercisesfor peacekeepersmerited unconditional approval.
To improve the professional training of peacekeepers, in
the past two years Uzbekistan and Kyrgyzstan, with the
participation of the Centrazbat collective peacekeeping
battalion and military units from the United States of
America, the Russian Federation, Turkey, Azerbaijan and
Georgia, hadtwicecarried out multidimensional exercises
in the territory of Kazakhstan. Those peacekeeping
exercises had covered issues relating to the coordination
of cooperation in the conduct of peacekeeping operations
when local conflicts occurred and the provision of
humanitarian assistance, aswell asthe command, control
and administrative support system.

101. Kazakhstan remained firmly committed to its
peacekeeping obligations and would continue to do its
utmost to make a practical contribution to the
strengthening of the peacekeeping potential of the United
Nations.

102. Mr. Valdivieso (Colombia) said that his delegation
was convinced of the effectiveness of peacekeeping
operationsasamechanismfor ensuringinternational peace
and security on the basis of the principles proclaimed in
the Charter of the United Nations. At the sametime, there
was no universal methodology that would allow an
effective response to various crisis situationswhich arose
ever more frequently as a result of internal, rather than
international, conflicts.

103. Inview of the fact that the concept of maintaining
international peace and security permitted awiderange of
operations to be undertaken, from conflict prevention to
direct peace-building, it was especially important to
improve the machinery for early warning of the causes of
conflicts and to prepare to react to them on that basis
before there was a need to resort to force. In that
connection, the implementation of measures for the
mai ntenance of peace and security should not be farmed

13



A/C.4/54/SR.10

out to any narrow group of countries. Moreover, in efforts
to carry out the mandate for the maintenance of
international peace and security, it was not acceptable to
depart fromthefundamental principlesandlegal standards
underlyingthejoint action of theinternational community.

104. The complex character of conflict situations to be
dealt with at the present time made it necessary to make
the Organization’s activities more dynamic while
mai ntai ning acautiousapproach. That would bethemajor
task in the coming century.

105. Intherecent report of the Secretary-General it was
stated that references to non-observance of humanitarian
principlesand humanrightswereincreasingly being used
tojustify the use of force, even without the sanction of the
Security Council. Inthat connection, hisdel egationaligned
itself with the statement made by the representative of
Jordan on behalf of the members of the Non-Aligned
Movement and supported their appeal for a clear
distinction between humanitarian activities and United
Nations peacekeeping operations.

106. Colombia further believed that when dealing with
humanitarian crisesthe United Nationssystem should use
its existing humanitarian support machinery, onthebasis
of constructive cooperation with legitimate national
Governments which demonstrated their desire to find
solutions.

107. Themultifaceted nature of peacekeeping operations
imposedaneedfor greater clarity andtransparency intheir
mandatesand objectives. Strict compliancewith mandates,
together withtheprior consent of the parties, enhancedthe
effectiveness of the operations, strengthened trust and
improvedtheprospectsfor thesuccessof thejoint activities
of the international community. In that connection
Colombia noted with satisfaction the distribution of the
Secretary-General’s bulletin on observance by United
Nations forces of humanitarian law.

108. Mr.Sato (Japan) saidthat duringthepast 12 months
the Security Council had taken a number of important
actionsintheareaof peacekeeping, for examplein Kosovo,
the Democratic Republic of the Congo, East Timor and
SierraL eone. Inthat context anumber of issueshad arisen
which required the urgent attention of the international
community, includingissuesof theOrganization’ scapacity
torespondtohumanitarian crises. Seriousattention should
be given in that connection to the statement made by the
Secretary-General in the General Assembly on 20
September ontheimportance of and thedilemmaposed by
intervention, in which peacekeeping was an essential
element.

14

109. Hisdelegationwishedtocomment ontwo questions.
The first was the need to put the United Nations
peacekeeping operations on asound financial footing; the
Secretariat had with good reason doubled the budget
estimatesfor such operationsin 1999. The Member States
must remind themselves anew of their obligation to pay
their assessed contributions on time, in full, and without
conditions. Furthermore, there must not be excessive
reliance on voluntary contributions to make up for
shortfalls in assessed contributions for peacekeeping
operationsor political missionsof theUnited Nations. The
caseof UNAMET wasnot encouraginginthat respect: the
first phase had been financed almost entirely from
voluntary contributions, and Japan in particular had
contributed over $10 million to the Trust Fund.

110. Thesecond question wasthe safety of peacekeeping
personnel, whichwasapreconditionfor all United Nations
peacekeeping operations. However, in 1999 alone 13 staff
members of the Organization had been killed in the line
of duty. Their tragic loss must be taken as yet another
reminder of the dangerous conditions faced by United
Nations personnel as they carried out their duties. Japan
had long been stressing the need for increased efforts to
ensure the safety of personnel in the field. The first
requirement was to establish international legal
frameworks to ensure the safety of personnel, and Japan
welcomed inthat connectionthe Convention onthe Safety
of United Nations and Associated Personnel, which had
enteredintoforceinJanuary 1999, andit called uponthose
States which had not yet done so to accede to the
Convention as soon as possible.

111. The second requirement was the implementation of
concrete measures to enhance safety. In that respect the
Trust Fund for Security of United Nations Personnel and
the training activities which the Fund supported were of
great importance. Japan, for itspart, had arranged several
training seminars for United Nations volunteers and had
contributed $1 million to support related activities.

112. Japan recognized the importance of investing the
force in East Timor with atruly multinational character
and had decided to contribute about $100 million to the
Trust Fundin order tofacilitate the participation of Asian
and other devel oping countriesin theinternational force.
It believed that the international character of theforcein
East Timor wouldbeapositiveassetinthetransitiontothe
United Nations peacekeeping operation. It therefore
appeal edtoother countries, particularly thedevel oped ones
which were not sending troops, to contribute to the Fund.



A/C.4/54/SR.10

113. Hisdelegationsupportedtheproposedimprovement
of the working methods of the Special Committee. Asone
of the sponsorsof thedraft resol ution Japan hoped that the
implementation of the proposal would lead to a more
fruitful discussion at future sessions in the Fourth
Committee and in the Special Committee.

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m.

15



